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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Chalasani Hospitals private limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of M/s Chalasani Hospitals private limited
(‘the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement ended on that date, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (Hereinafter referred

to as Financial Statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, the profit, and its cash flows for the year

ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial

statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the ‘Director’s
report’ but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial control with reference to financial statements.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

management.
'-'.|--;.|[\-'}\/
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.
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(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Statement of
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference
to those financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There were no amounts which are required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company as at 31st March,
2025. '
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iv.

a. The Managerhent has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the company to or in any other person(s) / entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary has, whether directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Benéeficiaries;

b. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) /
entity(ies), including foreign entities, that the company has directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c. Based on the audit procedures which we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances and according to the information and
explanations provided to us by the Management in this regard, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations made by the Management under sub-clause (a) and (b)
contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable

for the company only w.e.f from April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is
applicable.

o
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Based on our examination, the company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and recording an audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an
edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when
such changes were made. The audit trail facility has been operating throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, there are
no instances of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail
of prior year has been preserved as per the statutory requirements for record

retention.

3. In our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act and the rules thereunder are not applicable to the
Company as it is a private Company.

For B. Naga Bhushan & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 005584S fgﬁﬁx

i iQQ /
B r:: [L Bh:shan %
Pértngr \\

Membership No: 028574
UDIN: 25028574BMJLJG9968

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 10.05.2025
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CHALASANI HOSPITALS PRIVATE LIMITED FOR
THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025.

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ in the Independent Auditors’ Report]

i
(a) A The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

B The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on

such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, title deeds pertaining to the immovable
properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
revalued its property, plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and its
intangible assets. Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been
initiated or pending against the Company for holding Benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.
Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable

to the Company.

i. (a) According to the provisions stated in paragraph 3(ii) (a) to (b) of the Order physical
verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and in the opinion of the auditor, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate; No discrepancies of 10% or more in
the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed
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(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits of fifteen crore rupees
from Bandhan bank on the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly
statements filed by the company with the bank are in agreement with the books of
account of the Company

iii. According to the information & explanation provided to us, the Company has not
made any investments, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence, the requirements under paragraph
3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not either directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors
or to any other person in whom the director is interested, in accordance with the
provisions of section 185 of the Act and the Company has not made investments
through more than two layers of investment companies in accordance with the
provisions of section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act,
the rules framed thereunder and the Circulars, notifications issued from time to time
with regard to the deposits accepted. No order has been passed by the Company
Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any
Court or any other Tribunal in this respect.

vi. The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company as the turnover doesn’t meet the turnover criteria mentioned in Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014 for maintenance of cost records. Accordingly,
the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

vii.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including
goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
customs duty, cess have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases.

AL~



Cell : 9849995678, 7382590368
m{ email :nagabhushanca@gmail.com
bnagabhushan@yahoo.com

1-1-380/38, Ashok Nagar Extn.,
B. NAGA BHUSHAN & CO-a Hyderabad - 500 020. Tae';angana.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Date: (O O -J0T

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax,
customs duty, cess and any other statutory dues which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

viii.  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions
which are not accounted for in the books of account which have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the Tax Assessment of the Company. Also,
there is no previously unrecorded income which has been now recorded in the books
of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

iX.
(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted on repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of

interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
audit procedures, we report that the company has not been declared a willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government

authority.

(c) In our opinion, and according to the information & explanation provided to us, money
raised by way of term loans during the year has been applied for the purpose for
which they were raised.

(d) In our opinion, according to the information & explanation provided to us, there are no
funds raised on a short-term basis for long-term purposes. Accordingly, the provision
stated in paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information & explanation given to us and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
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(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed
by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge
of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

X.

(a) The Company did not raise any money by way of an initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions
stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares fully, partly or optionally
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Xi.

(a) During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the
Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in
India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither
come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company.

(b) We have not come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the
Company during the course of audit of the financial statement for the year ended
March 31, 2024, accordingly the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(b) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(c) There are no whistle blower complaints against the company during the year hence
the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhl Company. Accordingly, the provisions slaled in paragraph
3(xii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of
such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has an
internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. Since
the company is not mandated as per Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to appoint
an Internal Auditor, the Company does not require to comply with the provision of
section 138 of the Act. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xiv) (a) to (b) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the
year the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
people connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are
not applicable to the company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

XVi.
(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or
Housing Finance activities without any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve
Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company

(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3
(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company does not have more than one CIC as a part of its group. Hence, the
provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.
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xvii.  According to the information & explanation provided to us, the Company has incurred
cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial
year. Cash loss incurred for the current FY 2024-25 is Rs. 18.86 Crores & previous
FY 2023-24 is Rs. 35.44 Crores

xviii. There has been resignation of the statutory auditors by way of casual vacancy during
the year. No issues, objections or concerns were raised by the outgoing auditors.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of financial ratios, ageing and expected date of realization of financial
assets and payment of liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are
of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report and
the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

xx. According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section
135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence, the provisions of paragraph
(xx)(a) to (b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xxi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not
have any subsidiary / Associate/ Joint Venture. So, there is no preparation of
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph
clause 3 (xxi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For B. Naga Bhushan & Co.,

Chartered Accountants ———=._
Firm Registration No: 0055848

( \ a : '."l\.‘

f f."’HvDE- 5 13'-"

B. NagaLhushan l.f.\\':;:;l\ b 'E)f__f(__;-r_,!f'

Partner N2 A4S/
Membership No: 028574 '

UDIN: 25028574BMJLJ6996I8" -

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 10.05.2025
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CHALASANI HOSPITALS PRIVATE LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ in the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of
CHALASANI HOSPITALS PRIVATE LIMITED on the Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2025]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
CHALASANI HOSPITALS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025,
in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) (the
‘Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and malntamed and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects. :
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as of March 31, 2025, based on the
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the

Guidance Note.

For B. Naga Bhushan & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 0_0_55\-__84-8,.\ .
‘\fq‘ Pt/ // . \ 2N

1 ladll 2

B. Naga Bhushan l A\ D)l

Partner \

Membership No: 028574

UDIN: 25028574BMJLJ69968'

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 10.05.2025
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CIN: U85110AP2010PTC068262

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

4
Chal i H r- Is Private Limi

N As at As at As at
ote 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2.1(a) 1,066 258 231
Capital work-in-progress 2.1 (b) 3 - 18
Intangible assets 2.1(c) 2 3 -
Right to use-assets 83 -
Intangible Assets under Development - 3
Financial assets
(i) Investments 22 - 32 32
(i) Other financial assets 2.2(b) 40 44 40
Deferred tax assets (net) 231 131 - 16
Non-current tax assets (net) 27 31 41 73
Other non-current assets 23 92 31 41
Total non-current assets 1,448 409 474
Current assets
Inventories 24 31 12 22
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 25 218 173 476
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 2.6 (a) 36 5 11
(iii) Other financial assets 2.2(c) 11 10 9
Other current assets 2.8 24 84 60
Total current assets 320 284 578
Total assets 1,768 693 1,052
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 2.9 (a) 53 53 52
Other equity 29(b) {416} (318) 80
Total equity (363) (265) 132
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 2.10 1,386 503 487
(iti) Lease Liability 2.24 79 .
Provisions 2.12 9 - -
Total non-current liabilities 1.474 503 487
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 2,10 240 202 194
(ii) Trade payables 2.12
[N (a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - N -
L (b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 322 234 215
(iit) Other financial liabilities 2.11(b) 71 3 3
(iv) Lease Liability 2.24 4
Other current liabilities 2.15 10 16 21
Provisions 2.14 10 -
Total current liabilities 657 455 433
Total liabilities 1,768 693 1,052
Material accounting policies 1.3

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

for and a1, behalf of the Board of Directors of

As per our report attached of even date. 4'[‘
Chal "; i Hospitals Private Limited

for B.NAGA BHUSHAN & CO, /f

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 0055848

Nrf ‘P /\/—
B.Naga Bhushan
Partner
Membership No. 028574
UDIN: 25028574BMJLJG9968

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 10.05.2025

DIN: 02025407

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 10.05.2025

Veera Kishore
Reddy Sane
Director

DIN: 03492323

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 10.05.2025




Chalasani Hospitals Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2010PTC068262

Statement of Profit and loss for the period ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Not For the year ended For the year ended
R 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income

Revenue from operations 2.16 744 610
Other income 2.17 5 6
Total Income 749 616
Expenses

Purchase of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 162 142
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and 218 19 10
surgical instruments '

Employee benefits expense 2.19 176 120
Finance costs 2.20 119 71
Depreciation and amortisation expense 221 42 30
Other expenses 222 498 630
Total expenses 978 1,003
Loss before tax (229) (387)
Exceptional/ Extra-ordinary items - 5
Loss Before Tax (VIII - IX) (229) (392)
Tax expense

- Current tax -

- Deferred tax credit/(charge) (131) 16
- Tax pertining to previous years - 14
Total tax expense (131) 30
Loss for the year (98) (422)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

- Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans - -

- Income tax effect = o
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (98) (422)
Material accounting policies 1.3

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report attached of even date.
for BNAGA BHUSHAN & CO,. Chal s'lani Hospitals Private Limited

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 0055848

\\
1\ X
. . \ Ol Veera Kishore Reddy
B.Naga Bhushan WDER/“DAD; * J)' Na B Parvataneni Sane
Partner /& [ Director Director
Membership No. 028574 \“__/ oy DIN: 02025407 DIN: 03492323
UDIN: 25028574BMILIG9968N 74y e’
\\\ﬁ
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: 10.05.2025 Date: 10,05.2025 Date: 10.05.2025



Chalasani Hospitals Private Limited
CIN: U85110AP2010PTC068262
Statement of Cash flows for the perlod ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in mitlions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
I. Cash flows from operating activities:
Loss before tax (229) (387)
Adjustments for operating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 42 30
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 37 -
Provision of Expected credit loss for trade receivables (net of bad debts) 4 327
Trade receivables written off’ 4
Liabilities no longer required written back 116 -
Rental income - -
Interest income on fixed deposits and security deposits ) )
Interest on income-tax refund ) -
Finance costs 119 71
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 85 41
Adjustments for:
Increase in trade receivables (49) (24)
Increase in inventories (19) 10
Increase in loans and other assets (61) (26)
Increase in liabilities and provisions 99 15
Cash generated from operations 55 16
Income-taxes paid, net of refund 10 32
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 65 48
I1. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (934) 9)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment -
Redemptlon of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) 5 3)
1t in bank d its (having original maturity of more than three months)

Rental income recwed
Sale of subsidiary investment 32 -
Interest received 4 4
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (893) (8)
IT1. Cash flows from financing activities
Receipt from long-term borrowings 883 16
Repayment of long-term borrowings
Receipt from short-term borrowings 38 8
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (48]
Payment of Interest on lease liabilities 2)
Proceeds from Issue of Equity Shares - 1
Finance Costs paid (59) (71)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities (C) 859 (46)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 31 (6)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5 11
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 36 5

Note:

a) The statement of cash flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian accounting Standard (Ind AS 7)- Statement

of cash flows:
b) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Cash on hand 1 1
Balances with banks
- on current accounts 35 4
UDIN: 25028574BMJLIG9968 - -
Total 36 5

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report attached of even date

farjand on behalf of the Board of Directors of
for BNAGA BHUSHAN & CO, /—-::‘:_-;-H._ Chalasani Hospitals Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 0055848

N;{

B.Naga Rhushan
Partner
Membershlp No. 028574

Director
DIN: 02025407

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 10.05.2025 Date: 10.05 2025

Veera Kishore Redd
Sane

Director

DIN: 03492323

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 10.05,2025




Chalasani Hospitals Private Limited
CIN: U85110AP2010PTC068262

Special Purpose Limited Review Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

a) Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
At 01 April 2023

Add: Shares issued during the year

At 31 March 2024

Add: Shares issued during the period

At 31 March 2025

b) Other equity

Number of shares Amount
49,69,510 50
2,04,798 2
51,74,308 52
51,74,308 52

Other equity

Particulars Reserve and surplus Total of Other equity
Securities premium Retained earnings
Balance as at 1 April 2023 80 0 80
Profit for the year 24 (422) (398)
Re-measurement of defined benefit liability (net of tax) - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 104 (422) (318)
Profit for the period E 98) (98)
Re-measurement of defined benefit liability (net of tax) - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 104 (520) (416)

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date.

for BNAGA BHUSHAN & CO,.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 0055848

UNe

B.Naga Bhushan
Partner

Membership No. 028574
UDIN: 25028574BMILIG9968

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 10.05.2025

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chalasani Hospitals Private Limited

Parvataneni
Director
DIN: 02025407

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 10.05.2025

L~ A

Veera Kishore Reddy
Sane

Director

DIN: 03492323

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 10.05.2025
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Chalasani Hospitals Private Limited
CIN: UB5110AP2010PTC068262

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.1(b) Capital Work in Progreas

Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Gross Carrying amount
Balance as at - 38 27
Additions 11
Capitalised during the period/year - (41) -
Balance as at - 38
i) For capital work in progress, aging Schedule as on 31 March 2025
' CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears more than 3 years
-Projects in Progress 3 - - - 3
-Projects temporarilv sus ed - - - - -
Tatal 3 - - = 3
ii) For capital work In progress, aging Schedule as on 31 March 2024
CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
| <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 years
-Projects in Progress 3 11 27 - 41
-Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 3 11 27 - 41

There are no capital work in progress projects, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan as at 31 March 2025 and 31

March 2024

2.1 (¢} _Intangible assets

Sofltware

Balance as at 1 April 2023
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Balance as at 1 April 2024
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at 31 March 2025

Accumulated amortization
Balance as at 1 April 2023
Amortisation charge for the year
Disposals

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Balance as at 1 April 2024
Amortisation charge for the year
Disposals

Balance as at 31 March 2025

Carrying amounts (net)
At 1 April 2023

As at 31 March 2024
As at 31 March 2025

Note: "0* represents less than Rs.1 million




Chalasani Hospitals Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2010PTC068262

Notes to the financlal statements for the period ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
2.2 (a) Investments
Investment in subsidiaries - valued at cost
i) Equity shares
318,000 (31 March 2024: 318,000 ; 31 March 2023: 318,000) equity shares of Rs. 100 - 32 32
each fully paid up held in Vijaynagar Hospitals Private Limited
Total - 32 32
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - 32 32
Aggregate provision for impairment in value of investments - - -
2.2 Other financial assets (at amortized cost)
(b) Non-current
-To parties other than related parties
(Unsecured, considered good)
Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months of reporting date)* 36 41 38
Security deposits 4 3 2
Total 40 44 40

* Includes Rs. 6 (31 March 2024: Rs. 11) deposits placed which are restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee. These guarantees are maturing
after 12 months of the reporting date. And the for the amount of Rs.30 are kept under security lien for secured loan taken from Bandhan Bank.)

(¢) Current
-To parties other than related parties
(Unsecured, considered good)

Contract assets 10 8 [

Security deposits 1 2 2

Total 11 10 9
2.3 Other non-current assets

-To parties other than related parties

(Unsecured, considered good)

Capital advances 91 31 41

Balance with government authorities . -

Total 92 31 41
2.4 Inventories

(Valued at lower of cost or net realizable value)

Medical consumables, drug and surgical instruments 31 12 22

Total 31 12 22




Chalasani Hospitals Private Limited
CIN: U85110AP2010PTC068262
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
2.5 Trade receivables (at amortized cost)
(Unsecured)
Trade receivables - Considered good - 1 d 549 500 476
Trade receivables from related parties - Considered good - Unsecured (Refer note 2.28) - -
Less: Allowanca for expected credit loss (331) (327 E
218 173 476
Trade receivables - credit impaired - U d - - -
Less: Allowance for credit impairment - - .
Total 218 173 476
No trade or other receivable are du¢ from dil or other officers of the Company cilher severally or joinity with any other person, nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or privale companies respecti
director is a partner, a director or a member.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.
Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2025
Parti Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
articulars Total
Current but Not due |Less than 6 monthd 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vesrs Maore than 3 years
{i) Undisputed Trade reccivabl idered good 3 66 231 216 pE] - 549
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables- significant increase
in credit risk = = a & = =
(iii) Undisputed Trade ivabl edit impaired - - - - ¥ - .
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables-considered good - - - - - . .
(v) Disputed Trade receivables- significant increase in
eredit risk - - - - - . i
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables-credit impaired I~ . * = 5 - =
Total 549
Less: Allowance for expected eredil loss (331)
Balance at the end of the year 218
Trade Receivables ngeing schedule as on 31 March 2024
q Cutstanding Tor following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Current but Not due 5 mmonths -1 1.2 years 2.3 vears More than 3 years Total
(1) Lind: i Trade receivabl jered good L] 4 127 87 107 500
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables- significant increase
in eredit risk . . = E = .
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables-credit impaired - - - . = .
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables-considered good . i v : : 5
{v) Disputed Trade receivables- significant increass in
credit risk - s - - . -
{vi) Disputed Trade receivables-crodit impaired - - - - - -
Total 500
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (327)
Balance at the end of the year 173
Trade Receivables ageing schedule as an | April 2023
i Qutstanding for fellowing neriods from due date of payment
Particulars Current but Not due |Less than 6 monthy_6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Movethan 3 years R
(1) Undizputed Trade reccivabl Jdered good 7 160 115 W6 35 7 476
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables- significant increase . . - R : 5 5
(i1i) Undisputed Trade receivables-credit impaired - - - - - - -
{iv) Dispuited Trade receivables-considored good - - - - . = 3
(v) Disputed Trade recelvables- significant increase in - - - - -
(vi) DI Trade receivables-credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 476
(476)

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Balance at the end of the year




Chalasani Hospitals Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2010PTC068262

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
2.6 Cash and bank balances
a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 1 1 -
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 35 4 1
- In deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less) - - 10
36 5 11

Total

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three
months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

¢) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars 1 April 2024 Cash flows Addition 31 March 2025
Short term borrowings 202.00 38.00 - 240.00
Current Lease liabilities - - 4.00 4.00
Long Term borrowings 503.00 883.00 - 1,386.00
Non-current lease liabilities - - 79.00 79.00
Total liabilities from financing activities 705.00 921.00 83.00 1,709.00
Particulars 1 April 2023 Cash flows Addition 31 March 2024
Short term borrowings 194.00 8.00 - 202.00
Current Lease liabilities - - - -
Long Term borrowings 487.00 16.00 - 503.00
Non-current lease liabilities - - - -
Total liabilities from financing activities 681.00 24.00 - 705.00

Others in non-current borrowings includes effect of amortization cost. Others in lease liabilities is towards addition of lease liability and interest accrued
thereon on adoption of In AS 116.

2.7 Non-current tax assets (net)

Advance tax (net of provision for taxation) 31 41 73

31 41 73
2.8 Other current assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

Advance to suppliers 21 12 10

Prepaid expenses i - S

Staff Advances - 1 2

Other receivables 2 71 48

Total 24 84 60




Chalaasni Haspltals Private Limited
CIN: USS110AP2010PTCO68262

Notes fo the Mranclal statroients fur the period ended 31 March 2025
ey

(Al amounts are in miltions of Indéan R sharo data sated)
Anat Asul Avst
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
2:9a) Hupmbty skiare capltnl
Autharised
Clam A: 7,500,000 (31 March 2024: 7,500,000; 01 April 2023: 7,500,000) cquity sharea of INR 10 cach 75 k] 75
Clam B: 2,500,000 (31 March 2024: 2,300.000; 01 April 2023: 2,300,000) oquity shares of INR 10 each pi i 2
100 00 1M
Rimeed, sushcribesd and pald-up
Calss A: 4,969,510 (31 March 2024: 4.969.510: 01 April 2023: 4.969.5 10) oquity shares of INR 10 esch 0 0 0
Calm [; 264,977 (3] March 2024: 264,977: 01 Apil 2023: 204,798) equity sharca of INR 10 cach 3 3 2
1] 5 52
o 8 il o ¥ ol sqilty i Jingy it th heginningg and at the end of the year
Clow A:
Partlculars An st 3] March 2022 Anwl 31 March 2024
Number of shares Amount  Number of shares Amount
Al the commencement of the vear 49.69.510 L] T L]
{ davim g e A - - -
fhon g wt thie el of the perbod! vear 496881 0 A963.510 58
Dl B2
Patwiists As a1 34 Murch 2025 Anwial Mardh 3834
Mumber of shars Ammaant  Number of shares At
At the ecatiiencenment of the yor 20 577 3 2,64.977 3
R, he nerind/ver s = . -
i tive el of the peciod! vexr 204577 3 264577 3

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equlty sharwe:
Tho Company has two clixa of cquity shares having par vahio of Re. 10 per sharo. Class A and Clasms B cquity shares rank pari pums in respect of dividonds wnd participation in mirplus axscts nd profit in the
event of winding up, However, Class B Equity Shares have voting rights anly in respoct of Resrved Matiers whereas Class A Equity Sharca have voting rights in respect of all the matiers.

<) Particulsrs of sharehalders hulding more than $% equity shares

Asat31 March 2024

Naime wl shareholier As at31 March 2028
Mumiwr of shase % of holding Nismbr ol share Yo il Nodabling
Foristinn Institate of Midicsl Sclences Limitnd 277 100.00%
Lhalssmi & i - 00 Aundd10 99.M
d) Shares held by holding company Induding shares held by subsidiaries or amociates of the halding campany
Nt of sharshalder As at31 March 2025 A1u(31 Merch 2024
Numisee of shares % ofhudiling  Number of dhare S af linkllng
Wrishins Lostltste of \nllcal Scienees Limited 3234467 100,
Vyas Cancer Reearch Privato Limited . 0.00% 9,666 33.84%
|Wedar lng. - 00 1,78311 . 1%
«) The Company has not imucd bomun shares during the period of five years immedistely procoding the reporting period
1) The Compmny has not bought beck any sharca during the period of five yoars immicdiately preocding the reparting period
#) Deetaiiy of shares held Uy Pramisters
Avse31 March 2025
No of shares at
$. No Particulars Pramoter name begianingofthe  CHANFTduring the  Noof duaresstend  of po g pore, % chinge during
- yeur of the year the yer
I Epuity dhitees of Bs, 10 each Gilly paid Kriahi Instisute of Modical Scime : 23347700 $234477 100% o
1 Equity sharcs of Rs. 10 each fully paid B Bhakar Rso - 1000 n % [
il Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach fislly paid Chalasni Vayslakshei 4964410 (49,64,410) . % 93%
4 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fislly paid Vyas Cancer Research Privado Limi 9,666 89,666) - % 2%
4 Edquity suarcs of Rs. 10 each fully puid Biclam [nc. 175311 (1,75311.00) . 0% %
4 Equity shares of Re. 10 cach fliy paid Saileesh Chalusmni 2550 @550.00) . "% 0%
1 Equity sharcs of Ra. 10 each fully paid Usha Chalasani 2,550 (2,850.00) % %
Tatal £233.007 B 21407 100% @
Avatd 1 March 2024
No of sharvs at
. Changeduring the  Noof shares at end % change during
S.Na Pardculars Promoter name bedm:l“n'lro!me o of the year % of total shares the year
] Equiry thams of T, |0 cech Eily puid Chubuzi Vies siskabmi VBAAID SALD LY [N
3 Equity shares of Ra. 10 each fully paid Vyas Cancer Reasarch Privato Limi 89.666 B Z 111% 000%
3 Equity ghares of Rs. 10 asch fully paid Bioara Ino 115,132 60,179 175311 335% 5221%
4 Edquity shares of Rs. 10 oach fully paid Sailoesh Chalammi 2,550 E 2530 0.03% 000%
5 Equity shares of Re. 10 each fully paid Usha Chalaani 25% 2,550 2.05% 000%
Tatal €1.73308 0,178 £1.344K7 100.00% [
Annt Asat Asat
31 March 3035 A1 March 3024 1 Apail 2023
2%(b) Other equlty
A) Retalned earning (refer note () below)
Opening balance @22 - 52
Add: (Lass) for the year (98) 422) [£>3)
Other camprehensive income:
Remcasuranent gains an defincd bencfit plans (nel of tax) - -
Clasing balance (B) 3] [a11) -
B) Securities premium (Refer note (8) below)
Opening balance 104 0 a
Add: Incrense/(decronse) during the periodivear - M )
Closing bslence (C) 104 104 [T}
Total other equlty (A+B) (a18) (315} Wil

Nature and purpoe of resrves
() Retalned esrnings

of

Retzined aro the /e

() Securitles premium

mmed till dato, including itms of other comprehensive income.

Socuritics pramium is uscd (0 record the premium received on iame of sharea. It is utilisd in accordance with the provisions of the Campmics Adt, 2013.




Chalasani Hospitals Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2010PTC068262

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

2.10 Current borrowings

(@)

Non-cuivent borrowings
Secured
Term loans from bank
-From Banks 402 487
i)Axis Bank 33085 2
ii)ICICI - 9291 1
iii)IDFC-4747 1
iv)Indusind 0781 4 - -
v)Yes Bank 2
vi)Bandhan Bank 20001 276
vi)Bandhan Bank 20002 -
vi)Bandhan Bank 10001 115 - -

-From Financial Inslitutions 101 -
a)Fed - 1779 1 .

bYCREDIT 7485 -

c)Fulle 8369 1

d)Bajaj 2208 99 H F
e)TATA 56026 -

DU Gro 22300 1

Total loans from bank £03 503 487

Unsecured
Loans from related parties (refer note 2) HAE3
Total unsecured loans 883 = .

Total 1,386 503 487

Secured
Working capital loan from bank (Refer note 1) 136 202 194

Current maturity of long Lerm debis 104 -
Total 240 202 194

i) Axis Bank - Term loan Facilily is secured by way of first charge on the medical equipment i.e. Phillips Preowned Ingenuity
128 Slice CT Scan, The loan is having a tenure of 60 months having 6 months of moratorium and carries an interest rate of
Repo Rate + 4% i.e 10.25% per annum (31 March 2024; 10.50% per annum)

i) The Company hes availed a Term Loan from ICICI Bank for purchase of Innova Cresta Vehicle which is repayable in 60
Equated Monthly installments commencing from April 2023. The loan is secured by way of Hypothecation of the vehicle
purchased by availing the loan

iii) The Company has availed a Term Loan from IDFC First Bank for which is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly instaliments
commencing from November 2023 with a fixed interest rate of 10.99%, The loan is unsecured and is availed for the purpose
of meeling working capital requirements,

iv) Indusind Bank - Term loan Facility is secured by way of hypothecation of medical equip The loan is having a tenure

of 30 months and carries an interes| rale of floating rate linked (0 6 months CD rate + spread 4.22% p.a al monthly rest

(v) The Company has availed a Term Loan from Yes Bank for which is repayable in 60 Equated Monthly installments
commencing from October 2023 with a fixed interest rale of 12%. The loan is unsecured and is availed for the purpose of
meeling working capital requirements.

vi) Bandhan Bank - Term loan Facility is secured by way of exclusive charge by way of equitable mortgage of the hospital
land & building (existing as well as proposed) & exclusive charge on movable fixed assets of the company both present &
future and second charge over the current assets of the company & FD margin of Rs.3.0 Crs.The loan is having a tenure of
132 months having 12 months of moratorium and carries an interest rale of Repo Rale + 2% i.e 825% per annum as on
March 31st, 2025 and (he repayment staris from January 2025 and end by February 2036.

8) FED Bank - Term Loan Facility is secured by is secured by way of hypott ion of medical equip The loan is

repayable in 37 equated monthly instalments starting November 2023 and carries an interest rate of 12.50% per annum (31

March 2024: 12,50% per annum).

b) The Company has availed a Term Loan from Credit Saison Finance India Pvt Ltd for which is repayable in 24 Equated

Monthly install ing from D ber 2023 with a fixed interest rate of 17%. The loan is secured by way of

Hypolhecation of the medical equipment.

c) The Company has availed 8 Term Loan from SMFG India Credit Co Ltd for which is repayable in 37 Equated Monthly
ing from ber 2023 wilh a fixed interest rate of 13.50%. The loan is unsecured and is availed for

the purpose of meeting working capilal requirements.

d) Bajaj Finance Facility is secured by collateral security as property H.No.19, S.No.336/P, House No.19, “BAY MOUNT"

Project, Layout No. 103/89, Rushikonda Layout. Taral Nagar, Madt da, GVMC Limits, Visakhapatnam, Andhra

pradesh. The loan is repayable in 180 equaled hly instal starting 1 ber 2023 and carries an interest rate of

Repo rate + 3% i.e. 9.25% per annum (31 March 2024: 9 50% per annum)

) TATA Capilal - Unsecured business Joan Facility is having a tenure of 24 months (Oct 23 1o Oct 25) and carries an interest

rate of 13.50% p.a.

f) UGRO Capital - Unsecured business loan Facility is having a tenure of 36 months (Dec 23 to Nov 26) and carries an

interest rate of 17.50% p.a.

1.Working capital loan from Bandhan bank is secured by exclusive charge over entire current assels of the company both
present & future including stocks, receivables and all other current essels and second charge on hospital land & building,
olher movable assels of the Company. Loan is repayable on demand and carries an interest rate of Repo mate + 2.00% per
annum (31 March 2025: 6.25% per annum)

2.Unsecured loan from related parties as al 31 March, 2025 represented loans obieined from Krishna Institute of Medical

Scil Limited (Holding Company) and carrying inierest rate of 12% p.a (refer note 2 25),
e, i
L—| | j o ; —_
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Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts arc in millions of Indian Rupees except sharc dats or unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
2.11 Other financial liabilities (at amortized cost)
(a) Current
Capital creditors 12 - -
Employee beoefits payable * 1 = =
Interest accured but not due 58 3 3
Total kit 3 3
*Includes payables to related parties such as Krishna Institute of Medical sciences Limited and Rajyalaxmi Hospitals Private Limited
2.12 Non- Current provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 9 -
Total 2 x -
2.13 Trade payables (at amortized cost)
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - & =
- tolal outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterpriscs 322 234 215
Total 22 pEl] 215

The above includes payablk to related parties
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and arc normally settled on 30-90 day terms.

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as on 31 March 2025

Outstanding for follawing periods from due date of payment
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 vears Total
(1) Total cutstanding ducs of micre enterprises and small - - - -
entemirisces
(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 20 186 107 9 - 322

ises and small T

(it} Disputed dues of micro eaterprises and small enterprises - - *

Particulars Unbilled dues

(iv) Disputed dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and - - - =
small enterprises

Total 322

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as on 31 March 2024

O ling for following periods from due date of payme
<] vear 1-2 years 2-3 vears More than 3 years Total
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro cnterprises and small - - - .
enterprises
(i) Totl outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro 2 180 41 4

isce and small

(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterpriscs and small entcrprises - - - -

Particulars Unbilled dues

{1v) inpLLsd HUuh oF Srod sty Othur i MUK UhwtPHu Wil - . .
small enterprises

Total

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as on 01 April 2023

Particulars I Unbilled dues Outstanding for following periods from due dn:ve' of payment et

<1 vear 1-2 vears 2-3 years Mare than 3 vearz
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - - - - -
enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micra 2 174 30 4

ises and small P
(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - -

(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and - - - -
small enterprises
Total

218

2.14 Current provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity
Compensated absences 4 -

Total 10
2.15 Other liabilities
(a) Current

Statutory dues payable
Contract liabilitics 2

Total
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Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
2.16 Revenue from operations
A Revenue from medical and healthcare services (Refer note 2.32)
Income from hospital services 533 473
Income from sale of pharmacy and others 210 137
Total 743 610
B  Other operating income
Income from other operation 1 -
Total 1 .
Total Revenue from operations 744 610
2.17 Other income
Interest on:
- fixed deposits 2 4
- income-tax refunds 2 -
Miscellaneous income 1 2

Total 5 6




Chalasani Hospitals Private Limited
CIN: U85110AP2010PTC068262
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.18 (Increase)/Decrease in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Opening stock 12 22
Less: Closing stock 31 12
Total (19) 10
2.19 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 155 116
Contribution to provident and other funds 21 3
Staff welfare expenses - 1
Total 176 120
2.20 Finance costs
Interest expense on
- term loans 55 68
- Lease Liability 2 -
- Loan from related parties 62 -
Others = 3
Total 119 71
2.21 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note no 2.1(a)) 38 30
Amortisation on ROU assets 3 -
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note no 2.1(c)) 1 -
Total 42 30
2.22 Other expenses
Consultancy charges 208 166
[Touse keeping expenes 35 3
Power and fuel 20 19
Catering and patient welfare expenses 6 5
Rent 5 4
Repairs and maintenance:
- Medical equipment 28 21
- Hospital building and others 11 23
Printing and stationery 3 3
Audit fee 1 1
Legal and professional charges 5 12
Rates and taxes 3 3
Traveling and conveyance 3 1
Advertisement and publicity 3 4
Expected credit loss for trade receivables 4 327
Advance written off 153 4
Insurance 1 1
Bank charges 4 3
Miscellaneous expenses 5 10
Total 498 630
Note A: Payment fo auditors (excluding applicable taxes)

i For the year ended| For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Audit fee 1 1

" 0

Out of pocket expenses
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Notes to the financlal statements for the perfod ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.23

Contingent liabilities and commitments

(a) Includes a consumer case filed by an individual at National Consumer Disputes Redressal Commission against the Company demanding a total
compensation of Rs. 1Mn (31 March 2024: Rs. 1 Mn) towards medical negligence. Based on the legal opinion obtained by the Company and the internal
evaluation by the management, the Company believes that it has strong case in this regard and there shall not be any outflow of resources. No provision

thereof has been made in the financial statements.

b) Commitments

Particulars Asat As at|
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 377 42

(net of advances)
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All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

224  Lease

Operating and Finance leases in the capacity of lessee.

The Company has lease contracts for buildings used in its operations with lease terms between 3 and 10 years. The Company’s obligations under its

leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.

The Company has lease contract that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in
managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company’s business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether

these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Leasehold Building Total
As at 1 April 2023 -
Addition on adoption of Ind AS 116 - -
Additions -
Amortization expense - -
As at 31 March 2024 86 86
Additions - -
Amortization expense 3 3
As at 31 March 2025 83 83
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance - -
Additions 84 -
Accretion of interest 2
Payments 3)
As at 31 March 83 -
Current 4 -
Non-current 79 -
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Amortization expense of right-of-use assets 3 -
Interest expense on lease liabilities 2 -
Expense relating to short-term leases and low-value assets (included in other expenses) 5 -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 10 -
The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 8 in 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: Rs. 0).
The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of lease liabilities:
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Within less than one year 11 -
Between one and five years 49 -
After more than five years 68 -
Total 128 -
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(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.25 Employee benefits
Defined benefit plan

The Company operates post employment defined benefit plan that provides for gratuity. The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five
years of continuous services, to receive one-half month's salary for each year of completed services at the time of retirement/exit. The gratuity fund is
administered by trust formed for this purpose and is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company's obligation in respect of gratuity plan,
which is a defined benefit plan is provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The

Company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as applicable as at the balance sheet date.

A Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognized in

the Company's financial statements as at the balance sheet date:

Particulars i Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation 15 =
Fair value of plan assets = =
Net present value of defined benefit obligation 15 -
Non-current 9 =
Current 6 -

B Reconciliation of net defined benefit obligation

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit obligation and its components.

i) Reconcilintion of present value of defined benefit obligation

As at
i
Particulars 31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Defined benefit obligation as at 1 April

Current service cost

Interest cost on defined net benefit plan

Actuarial (gains) / losses recognized in other comprehensive income
- changes in financial assumptions

- experience adjustments

Benefits paid

Defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 15

C i) Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current service cost 15 -
Interest on defined benefit obligation / plan assets (net) 1 -
Net gratuity cost, included in 'employee benefits' 16 -
C ii) Re-measurements recognized in other comprehensive income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Actuarial (gain) / loss on defined benefit obligation
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(iii)

D Defined benefit obligation

i) Actuarial assumptions
T . . As at As at
Principal actuarial assumptions 31 March 2025 31 Miarch 2024
Discount rate 6.55% 7.15%
Salary escalation rate 8.00% 8.00%
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1st following year 6 -
2to S years 10 -
Year6to9 2 =

10 years and above

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of
the obligations.

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into accounts the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

Expected rate of return on plan assets: This is based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investment of the fund during the
estimated term of the obligations.

ii) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the
amounts shown below:

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2025 For the year ended 31 March 2024

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (0.5% movement) - 1 - .
Salary escalation rate (0.5% movement) 1 - - s

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of the cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the
sensitivity of the assumption shown.

E Defined contribution plan

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss towards
2 2

i) Provident fund

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in
September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the
final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related

impact in the period the Code becomes effective.
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2.26 Related party disclosures

(a) Parties where control exists or where significant Influence exists and with whom transactions have taken place during the current year or
previous year:

Nature of relationship Name of related parties
Haolding Company Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) Ms. Vijava Lakshmi Chalosani

Mr. Ssileesh Chalasani

Mr. Nagendra B Par i (Additional Di (w.¢.[31.08.2025)

Mr. Sana Kishore Kumar Reddy (Additional Directors) (w.e.{31.04.2025)

Relative to KMP Ms. Usha Chalasani

Feilow Subsidiaries KIMS Hospitals Enterprises Private Limited
Rajyalakshmi Hospitels Private Limiled
KIMS Swastha Private Limited

Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel and / or their Relatives have significant influence
Chalaseni Bio-Pharma Pvt Lid

Vijavansear Hospitals Pyt Ltd

{b) Transaction with related pacties
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
Artied 31 March 2028 31 March 2024

Saileesh Chalasani
Professional Charges

Usha Chalasani
Professional Charges

Chalasani Bio-Pharma Pvt.Ltd.
Purchase of Medicines =

KIMS Swastha Private Limited
Advances given 5 -

Rajyalakshmi Hoapitals Private Limlted
Loans & Advances taken 70 -
Interest Expense i

KIMS Hospitals Enterprises Private Limited
Advances laken 25

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Purchase of medical consumables, drugs end surgical instruments 1
Loans & Advences taken 868
Interest Expense
Advances taken 40 -

(¢) The balances payable to related parties

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

i, Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Trade Payable 1 =
Advances laken 40 -
Unsecured Loans 868 -
Interest Payable 54

ii. KIMS Hospitals Enterprises Private Limited
Advances taken 25 -

iii. Rajyalakshmi Hospitals Private Limlted
Unsecured Loans 15 -
Interest Payable 0

iv. Vijaya Lakshmi Chalasani
Capital Advances - 31
Advances Recoverable in Cash or Kind - 54

v.  Saileesh Chalasani
Professional Charges Payable -

vi. Usha Chalasani
Trade Payables >

vii, Vijayanagar Hospitals Pvt Ltd.
Investment -
Advances Recoverable in Cash or Kind -

viil. Chalasani Bio-Pharma Pvt Ltd
Advances Recoverable in Cash or Kind -

Note: "0" represents less than Rs. | million

Terms and conditions:

All transactions with these related parties are priced on arm’s length basis and resulting ding receivables and payabl luding fi ial assels and
financial liablilities balances are seitled in cash within a range of 30-120 days of the transaction date. None of the balances are secured,
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2,27

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity sheres outstanding during the period is adjusted for share split that have

changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in reserves.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares
into Equity shares. The weighted average number of equity shares including dilutive potential equity shares , outstanding during the period is adjusted for

share split that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in reserves.

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Earnings

Laoss for the year attributable to equity shareholders 98) 422)
Shares

Number shares at the beginning of the year 52,34,487 52,34 487
Add: Equity shares issued during the year - -
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 52,34,487 52,34,487
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year - Basic and Diluted 52,34,487 52,34,487
Earnings per share of par value Rs. 10 each - Basic and Diluted (Rs.) 19 81)

There are no potentially dilutive equity shares and therefore basic and diluted EPS are the same.
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2.28 Segment information

The Board of Directors of the Company takes decision in respect of allocation of resources and assesses the performance basis the report/ information
provided by functional heads and are thus considered to be Chief Operating Decision Maker.

Based on the Company's business model, Medical and Healthcare services have been considered as a single business segment for the purpose of making
decision on atlocation of resources and assessing its performance. Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments in accordance with the requirements
of Ind AS 108 ‘Operating segment” and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided other than those already provided in the consolidated
financial statements. Presently, the Company’s operations are predominantly confined in India. There are no individual customer contributing more than 10%
of Company's total revenue. All non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets of the Company are

located in India.

2.29 Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum.
Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amount payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2025 has been made in the financial statements based on
information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance
with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (The MSMED Act) is not expected to be material. The Company
has not received any claim for interest from any supplier.

) As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small supplies as at end of the year
- Principal -

- Interest - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the N ;

appointed day during each accounting year,

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which h has been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED B _

Act;
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and . B

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when
the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a . .
deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act.

e —e
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2.30 Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future development of the
business. Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the 'net debt' to 'total equity’ ratio.

For this purpose, net debt is defined as total borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises of issued share capital and all other equity
reserves.

The Company's net debt to equity ratio as of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 was as follows:

Particulars As at As at As at|
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Total borrowings 1,626 705 681
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 36 5 1
Net debt 1,590 700 670
Total equity (363) (265) 132
Net debt to equity ratio -400% -300% 500%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached
to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current
year.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.
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231

Financisl instruments : Fair value and risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values

The management assessed that loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, borrowings, trade payables and other fi ial liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts as fair value.
As at 31 March 2025 Carrying Value Fair Value Fair value level
Financial assets at amortised cost {Refer note below)

Trade receivables 218 218

Cash and cash equivalents 36 36

Other financial assets 5l 51
Total 305 305

e . level 3

Financial linbilities at amortised cost (Refer note below)

Long-term borrowings 1,386 1,386

Current borrowings 240 240

Lease liabilities 83 83

Trade payables 322 322

Other financial liabilities 71 71
Total 2,102 2,102
As at 31 March 2024 Carrying Value Fair Value Fair value level
Financial assets at amortised cost (Refer note below)

Trade receivables 173 173

Cash and cash equivalents 5 5

Bank balances other than above - -

Other financial assets 54 54
Total 232 232

level 3

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Refer note below)

Loan-term borrowings 503 503

Short-term borrowings 202 202

Lease liabilities -

Trade payables 234 234

Other financial liabilities 3 3
 Total 439 439

Note for financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost:

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, other finencials assets, other financial liabilities and cash and cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash

equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

The fair values of lease liability are based on discounted cash flowes using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as level 3 fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable

inputs including own credit risk.

The fair value of loans were calculated based on discounted cashflows using current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values hierarchy due to the inclusion of obseravable

inputs including counter party credit risk.

HYDERABAD |
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231

Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management (continued)

B. Fi ial risk
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

(i) Risk management framework
The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk rent fr k. The Company’s risk nent
policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Coimpany, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk

management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

The Company’s board of directors oversees how gement monitors compli with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

(i) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The credit risk arises principally from
its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments. The

carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for
credit. The collection from the trade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team.

The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables based on the past and the recent collection
trend. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to Rs. 549 as on 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024 : Rs.500 ; 01 April
2023 : Rs.476). The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows:

Asat Asat
Allowance for credit losses 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance 327 -
Credit loss added/ reversed 4 327
Closing bal 331 327

Trade receivable write off not routed through the above movement # -
The Company uses a provision matrix to determine the expected credit loss on the portfolio of its trade receivables and contract assets. The provision matrix is based on its historically
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and contract assets and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. The expected credit loss allowance is based on
the ageing of the days the receivables are due in the provision matrix. Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure of the Company's trade receivables and contract
asset using provision matrix:

0-180 days due past More than 180 days Gross trade receivables

Not past due due date past due date and contract assets
For the year ended 31 March 2025 23 66 470 559
For the year ended 31 March 2024 16 167 325 508
For the year ended 01 April 2023 14 160 309 483

Customer Concentration
No single customer represents 10% or more of the company’s total revenue during the year ended 31 March 2025 and year ended 31 March 2024. Therefore the customer

concentration risk is limited due to the large and unrelated customer base.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the company generally tr ts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by interational and domestic
credit ratir 23—
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(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

(iii) Ligquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations iated with its fi

ial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another

financial asset. The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its shart term, medium term and long term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company manages the liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. The Company also has adequute credit focilities agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal

operating commitments in a timely and cost-effective manner.

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financiat liabilities as of 31 March 2025

Particulars Carrying value Less than 1 year 1-5years More than 5 years Total
Long-term barrowings {excluding current maturities) 1,386 - 1,276 110 1,386
Short-term borrowings 240 240 = o 240
Trade payables 322 322 = = 322
Lease liabilities 83 4 24 55 83
Other finaneinl liabilities 71 12 59 - 71
Taotal 2,102 578 1,359 165 2,102

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2024

Particulars Carrying value Less than 1 year 1- 5 years More than 5 years Tatal
Long-term borrowings (excluding current maturities) 503 - 487 16 503
Short-term borrowings 202 202 - - 202
Trade payables 234 234 - - 234
Lease liabilities - - - - -
Other financial linbilities 3 3 - - 3
Total 439 439 487 16 942
The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 1 April 2023
Particulars Carrying value Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Long-term borrowings (excluding current maturities) 487 - 487 - 487
Short-term borrowings 194 194 - - 194
Trade payables 215 215 - - 215
Lease liabilities - - - - -
_Other financial linbilities 3 3 - - 3
Total 412 412 487 - 899
(iv) Market risk
(a) Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 30 April 2023
Variable rate long term borrowings including current maturities and short term borrowings 743 705 681
Taotal borrowings 743 705 681
(b) Cash flow itivity analysis
Impact on profit or loss Equity, net of tax
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Sensitivity
1% increase in MCLR 7 Q) 7 U]
1% decrease in MCLR (7 7 (7 7

The interest rate sensitivity is based on the closing balance of secured term loans and working capital loan from banks.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctunte because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. The Company does not have any financial instruments which are affected by market

risk.
(v) Currency risk
The Company is not exposed to currency risk.
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232  Income tax

2, Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current year tax - -
Deferred tax attributable to temporary differences (131) 16
a3y 16

Tax expenses for the year

b. Amount recognized in ather comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2025 For the year ended 31 March 2024
Tax (expense)/ Tax (expense)/
Before tax \ Net of tax Belore tax benelit Net of tax
Re-measurement on defined benefit plans - 0 - = =

¢. Reconcilintion of effective tax rate

For the yearended  For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Praofit/ (loss) before tax (229) {337)
Enacled Lax rates 0 0
Tax expense at cnacled rates (58) 97
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/ (taxable) in calculating taxable income
48 -

Non-deductible expenses
Deferred tax not recognised on various ilems (net) 10 | 97

d. Recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities

Asat Asat
Particulirs 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deferred tax asset
Provision for employee benefils 5)
On Losses (46)
Totul delerred tax asset (51)
Deferred tax Liability
Property, plant and equipment 5 -
Provition for doubtful receivables (83)
Finnnce Lease [} =
Taotal deferred tax laibility (78) -
Deférred tax liability/asset (net) (129) -
*Tux loss, unabisorbed depreciation camy-forward and others for which no deferred tax assets were recorded amounting to Rs, Nil {31 March 2024: Rs. Nil)
(i) Movement in temparary differences
Particulras Provision for deubtful Provision for Others Property, plant Totnl
receivables employee and equipment
benefits
Balance as at | April 2023 - R - . -
Recognlsed in profit or logs during 2023-24 - . . . -
Recognised in OC! during 2023.24 - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - = = - -
Recognised i profit or loss during 2024-25 (43) (3 (46) 3 (IE'JJ-|
Recognised in OC! during 2024-25 - - - - -
53) &) 46 5 {129)

Balance as at 31 March 2025
Note: "0" represents loss than Rs. | million
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2.33 Revenue from contracts with customers:

Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income from hospital services 533 473
Income from sale of pharmacy items 210 137
Total revenue from contracts with customers 743 610
India 743 610
Outside India - -
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred over time 533 473
Goods transferred at a point of time 210 137
Total revenue from contracts with customers 743 610
Reconciliation of revenue recognized with the contracted price is as follows:
Contract price 745 639
Less: Discounts and disallowances ) (29)
Total revenue from contracts with customers 743 610
Contract balances
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Trade receivables 218 173
Contract assets - refer note 2.7(b) 10 8
Contract liabilities - refer note 2.18 2 1

Contract liability: During the financial year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has recognised revenue of Rs. 2 Mn from advance received from
patients outstanding as on 31 March 2024. During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, the company has recognised revenue of Rs. 1 Mn from

advance received from patients outstanding as on 31 March 2023.

Contract asset: During the financial year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has transferred Rs. 10 Mn of contract assets as at 31 March 2024 to
trade receivables on completion of performance obligation. During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, the company has transferred Rs. 8 Mn

of contract assets as at 31 March 2023 to trade receivables on completion of performance obligation.
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Chalasani Hospitals Private Limited
CIN: U85110AP2010PTC068262
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (continued)

2.35 First time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements are the first set of Ind AS financial statements prepared by the Company. Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which
comply with Ind AS applicable for year ending on 31 March 2025, together with the comparative year data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, as described in the
significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2023, being the Company’s date of
transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at
1 April 2023 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Exemptions availed on first time adoption of Ind AS
Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements
under Ind AS. The Company has accordingly applied the following exemptions.

(a) Deemed Cost
Since there is no change in the functional currency, the Company has elected to continue with carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognized in its

Indian GAAP financial statements as its deemed cost at the date of transition after making adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities. Accordingly the management has
elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment at their Indian GAAP carrying value.

(b) Compound financial instruments
When the liability component of a compound financial instrument is no longer outstanding at the date of transition to Ind AS, a first-time adopter may elect not to apply Ind

AS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, retrospectively to split the liability and equity components of the instrument.

Mandatory Exemption on first-time adoption of Ind AS

(a) Estimates
An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with Indian

GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2023 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with Indian GAAP. The Company made estimates for
following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under Indian GAAP:

(i) Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

(ii) Fair valuation of compound instrument.

(iii) Effective interest rate used in calculation of security deposit.

(b) Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A first-time adopter should apply the derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, prospectively to transactions occurring on or after the date of
transition. Therefore, if a first-time adopter derecognized non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities under its Indian GAAP as a result of a
transaction that occurred before the date of transition, it should not recognize those financial assets and liabilities under Ind AS (unless they qualify for recognition as a
result of a later transaction or event). A first-time adopter that wants to apply the derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109,Financial Instruments, retrospectively from a
date of the entity's choosing may only do so, provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109,Financial Instruments, to financial assets and financial liabilities
derecognized as a result of past transactions was obtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions.

The Company has elected to apply the de-recognize provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS.

(c) Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Transition to Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
These financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The adoption of Ind AS was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, using April 1, 2023 as the transition
date. Ind AS 101 requires that all Ind AS standards and interpretations that are effective for the year ended March 31, 2024, be applied consistently and retrospectively for
all fiscal years presented. All applicable Ind AS have been applied consistently and retrospectively wherever required. The resulting difference between the carrying
amounts of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements under both Ind AS and Previous GAAP as at the transition date have been recognised directly in equity at
the transition date:

The effect of the Company’s transition to Ind AS is summarized as follows:

(i) Transition election

(ii) Reconciliation of equity as previously reported under Indian GAAP to Ind AS

(iii) Reconciliation of profit or loss as previously reported under Indian GAAP to Ind AS

(iv) Adjustments to the statement of cash flows.

(i) Transition elections
The Company has prepared the opening Balance Sheet as per Ind AS as of April 01, 2023 (the transition date) by recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition is

required by Ind AS, not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to Ind AS as required
under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities. However, this principle is subject to certain mandatory exceptions and optional
exemptions availed by the Company as detailed below:

Property, plant and equipment
In accordance with Ind AS transitional provisions, the Company opted to consider previous GAAP carrying value of Property, plant and equipment as deemed cost on

transition date for carrying the value of Property, plant and equipment In the Ind AS financial statement.
Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:

The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the transition date.

gy " "-/__
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Chalasani Hospitals Private Limited
CIN: U85110AP2010PTC068262
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (continued)

2.35 First time adoption of Ind AS (continued)

B. Reconciliation between Indian GAAP and Ind AS
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity and total comprehensive income for prior periods. The following table represents the equity reconciliation from previous GAAP to Ind

As at date of transition 1 April 2023 As at 31 March 2024
IGAAP * IND AS IGAAP * IND AS
FootNotes [ ii2023 NP ASImpAct o o\ brit 2023 31 March 2024 INDASTmpact 5, \iorch 2024

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment b 231 - 231 255 3) 258
Capital work-in-progress 38 - 38 - - -
Intangible assets - = - 3 - 3
Intangible assets under Development 3 - 3 - -
Financial assets

(i) Investments 32 - 32 32 - 32

(ii) Other financial assets 40 - 40 44 - 44
Deferred tax assets, net 16 - 16 - - -
Non-current tx assets 3 - 73 41 - 41
Other non-current assets 41 - 41 31 - 31
Total non-current assets 474 - 474 406 (3} 409
Current assets
Inventories 22 - 22 12 - 12
Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables a 476 - 476 173 - 173

(ii) Cash and bank balances 11 - 11 5 - 5

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above - - - - - -

(iv) Other financial assets 9 - 9 10 - 10
Other current assets 60 - 60 84 - 84
Total current assels 578 - 578 284 - 284
Total assets 1,052 - 1,052 690 (3) 693
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 52 - 52 53 - 53
Other equity d 80 - 80 (321) 3) (318)

132 - 132 (268) (3) (265)

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
UDIN: 25028574BMJLJG9968 487 - 487 503 - 503
(i) Other financial liabilities - - - - = -
Lease Liability - - . - - =
Provisions - - - = = -
Deferred tax liability, net - = - - = -
Total non-current liabilities 487 - 487 503 - 503
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 194 - 194 202 - 202
(ii) Trade payables - = - - -

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro - - - = -
enterprises and small enterprises
UDIN: 25028574BMJLJG9968 215 - 215 234 - 234
(iii) Other financial liabilities ) - 3 3 - 3
Lease Liability = - = = -
Other current liabilities 21 - 21 16 - 16
Provisions = = = 3 - -
Current tax liabilities - - - a a =
Current tax liabilities (Net) - = - = = =
Total current liabilities 433 = 433 455 - 455
Total liabilities 920 - 920 958 - 958
Total equity and liabilities 1,052 - 1,052 690 3) 693

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note
DIN: 25028574BMILIG9968
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our Report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

for B.NAGA BHUSHAN & CO,. e Chalasani Hospitals Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 0055845

|

Veera Kishore

B.Naga Bhushan Reddy Sane
Partner Director
DIN: 02025407 DIN: 03492323

Membership No. 028574
UDIN: 25028574BMILJG9968

Place: Hyderabad - Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 10.05.2025 Date: 10,05.2025 Date: 10,05.2025



Chalasani Hospitals Private Limited
CIN: U85110AP2010PTC068262
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (continued)

2.35 First time adoption of Ind AS (continued)

C. Reconciliation of total comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 2024
As at 31 March 2024

Foot Notes

IGAAP*
31 March 2024

IND AS Impact

IND AS
31 March 2024

Revenue from operations 610 - 610
Other income 6 - 6
Total revenue 616 - 616
Expenses
Purchase of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 142 - 142
Decrease in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 10 = 10
Employee benefits expense 120 - 120
Finance costs 71 - 71
Depreciation and amortisation expense b 33 3 30
Other expenses 630 - 630
Total expenses 1,006 3 1,003
Loss before Exceptional/Extra-ordinary items (390) 3) (387)
Exceptional/ Extra-ordinary items 5 - 5
Loss before tax (395) 3) (392)
Income-tax expense

- Current tax - - -

- Deferred tax (credit)/ charge 16 - 16
- Tax pertining to previous years 14 5 14
Loss for the year (425) 3) (422)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
- Re-measurement of defined benefit plans - - -
- Income-tax effect - - =
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (425) (3) (422)

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.




Chalasani Hospitals Private Limited
CIN; U85110AP2010PTC068262

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (continued)

2.35 First time adoption of Ind AS (continued)

a. Impact due to expected credit loss on trade receivables

On transition to Ind AS, the Group recognised impairment loss on trade receivables based on the expected cedit loss method as required by Ind AS 109.

Consequently, trade receivables have been reduced with a corresponding decrease in retained

provision for the year ended 31 March 2023.

b, Change in Depreciation Method from WDV to SLM under Ind AS

eamnings on the date of transition and there has been an incremental

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), the Company followed the Written Down Value (WDV) method of depreciation for its property, plant and equipment
(PPE) in accordance with Schedule 1T of the Companies Act, 2013 However, upon transition to Ind AS, and in compliance with Ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and

Equipment, the Company has reassessed the method of depreciation to reflect the pattern in which the asset’s future ec

onomic benefits are expected to be

consumed. Based on this assessment, the Company has elected to adopt the Straight Line Method (SLM) of depreciation for its PPE from the transition date.

D. Reconciliation of other equity as at 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2023

INR in millions

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
1 April 2023

Other equity under previous GAAP

Summary of Ind AS adjustments

Impact due to transaction cost on borrowing, net of tax

Fair valuation of security deposits, net of tax

Guarantee commission for corporate guarantee given by KIMS, net of tax
Due to method of depreciaition

Impact due to expected credit loss on trade receivables, net of tax
Arragement containing lease, net of tax

Total Ind AS adjustments
Equity under Ind AS

(321)

&)
(318)

80

80

E. Cash flow statement
Reconciliation of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2024:

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Net cash provided by financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 2.7)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

As per our Report on financial statements of even date attached

for B.NAGA BHUSHAN & COB_, .
C.hartered Accountants 7 /,’fg HFSH .
Firm Reg. No. 0055848 // [P

VIO

v \o\

\

B.Naga Bhushan
Partner
Membership No. 028574
UDIN: 25028574BMJLIGYY

k* rDER,eBAD)'S =

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 10.05.2025

INR in millions

IGAAP
31 March 2024

IND AS Impact

IND AS
31 March 2024

45
(5)
(46)

48

®
(46)

()
11

(6)
i}

5

For and i behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chatasani Hospitals Private Limited

Director
DIN: 02025407

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 10.05.2025

Veera Kishore
Reddy Sane
Director

DIN: 03492323

Wm

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 10.05.2025
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Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.36 The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. The Company does not have

any unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

2.37 Other Statutory Information

2.38

2.39

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(iii)y The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in

writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
(vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the 1ax assessments under the Incame Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(viii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(ix) The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year.

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, there are no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, additionally the audit

trail of prior year has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the respective

year.

There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting period.
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